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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

YISROEL SELWYN on behalf of himself and
all other similarly situated consumers

Plaintiff,
-against-
FORSTER & GARBUS LLP

Defendant.

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
Introduction

1. Plaintiff, Yisroel Selwyn, brings this action against Forster & Garbus LLP for violations
of the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1692, et seq. (“FDCPA”). The
FDCPA prohibits debt collectors from engaging in abusive, deceptive and unfair
collection practices while attempting to collect on debts.

Parties

2. Plaintiff is a citizen of the State of New York who resides within this District.

3. Plaintiff is a consumer as that term is defined by Section 1692(a)(3) of the FDCPA, in
that the alleged debt that Defendant sought to collect from Plaintiff a consumer debt.

4. Upon information and belief, Defendant's principal place of business is located in
Commack, New York.

5. Defendant is regularly engaged, for profit, in the collection of debts allegedly owed by

consumers.
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Defendant is a “debt collector” as that term is defined by the FDCPA, 15 U.S.C. §
1692(a)(6).
Jurisdiction and Venue

This Court has federal question jurisdiction under 15 U.S.C. § 1692k(d) and 28 U.S.C. §
1331.
Venue is proper in this district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b), as the acts and
transactions that give rise to this action occurred, in substantial part, in this district.

Allegations Particular to Yisroel Selwyn
Upon information and belief, on a date better known by Defendant, Defendant began to
attempt to collect an alleged consumer debt from the Plaintiff.
On or about November 13, 2017, Defendant sent the Plaintiff a collection letter.
The said letter was an effort to collect on a consumer debt.
The said collection letter was confusing to the Plaintiff and is likely to be misconstrued
by the “least sophisticated consumer” since it is open to more than one reasonable
interpretation, at least one of which is inaccurate.
The Second Circuit stated in Avila v. Riexinger & Assocs., LLC, 817 F.3d 72, 74 (2d Cir.

2016):

“The question presented is whether a collection notice that states a
consumer's "current balance,” but does not disclose that the balance may
increase due to interest and fees, complies with this provision. We hold
that Section 1692e requires debt collectors, when they notify consumers
of their account balance, to disclose that the balance may increase due to
interest and fees.”

The holding of the Second Circuit is that Section 1692e of the FDCPA requires every
debt collector in every collection letter “to disclose that the balance may increase due to

interest and fees”.
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However, if the “BALANCE DUE” will never increase and the holder of the debt will
always accept payment of the amount set forth in full satisfaction of the debt then the
Second Circuit alternatively stated:

“We hold that a debt collector will not be subject to liability under
Section 1692e for failing to disclose that the consumer's balance may
increase due to interest and fees if the collection notice either accurately
informs the consumer that the amount of the debt stated in the letter will
increase over time, or clearly states that the holder of the debt will accept
payment of the amount set forth in full satisfaction of the debt.” Id. at
817.

The Second Circuit in Avila did not “hold that a debt collector must use any particular
disclaimer” Id.

However, the Second Circuit did address all the possible scenarios: 1) If the “current
balance” could increase over time, then the collection notice must disclose that the
“balance might increase due to interest and fees”. Id. 2) If the “current balance” is
currently increasing, then the collection notice must disclose that the amount of the debt
stated, “in the letter will increase over time”. Id. 3) If the “current balance” will never
increase and the debt collector is always willing to accept this "specified amount™ in "full
satisfaction” of the debt, then the debt collector must state so clearly. However, if a debt
collector is willing to accept a “specified amount” in full satisfaction of the debt only if
payment is made by a specific date, then the debt collector must simplify the consumer's
understanding by so stating, while advising that the amount due could increase by the
accrual of additional interest or fees if payment is not received by that date.

In this case, the “BALANCE DUE” would increase over time due to undisclosed fees.
Nevertheless, the collection notice did not disclose that the amount of the debt stated in

the letter “could” or “will” increase over time.
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Though the November 13, 2017 letter listed a “BALANCE DUE” and demanded
payment in full, the letter did not state on which date the “BALANCE DUE” was
calculated, and did not explain that other charges would continue to accrue on the unpaid
principal; thus, the Plaintiff’s total balance might be greater on the date she makes a
payment.

A reasonable consumer could read the notice and be misled into believing that he or she
could always pay his or her debt in full by paying the amount listed on the notice.

Yet in reality, the “BALANCE DUE” was not static as represented by a summons and
complaint which was filed against Mr. Selwyn in Civil Court, County of Kings, which
demanded the “sum of $10,198.95 together with the disbursements of this action.”

Since there are undisclosed costs, disbursements and fees, a consumer who pays the
“BALANCE DUE” stated on the notice will not know whether the debt has been paid in
full.

The debt collector could still seek the fees that accumulated after the notice was sent but
before the balance was paid, or sell the consumer’s debt to a third party, which itself
could seek the interest and fees from the consumer.

The statement of a “BALANCE DUE,” without notice that the amount could increase
over time, or already increasing due to other charges, would mislead the least
sophisticated consumer into believing that payment of the amount stated will clear his or
her account.

The FDCPA requires debt collectors, when notifying consumers of their account balance,
to disclose that the balance may increase due to interest or fees; failure to include such

disclosures would harm consumers such as the Plaintiff who may hold the reasonable but
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mistaken belief, that timely payment will satisfy their debts and it would abrogate the
Congressional purpose of full and fair disclosure to consumers that is embodied in
Section 1692e.

Collection notices that state only the “BALANCE DUE,” but do not disclose that the
balance might increase due to interest or fees, are “misleading” within the meaning of
Section 1692e.

Although the said November 13, 2017 letter stated an amount due and demanded
payment in full, the letter also failed to disclose to the Plaintiff that the debt could accrue
additional charges over time.

Upon receiving the said November 13, 2017 letter, the Plaintiff was uncertain whether
the amount due was static as there was no disclosure or admonition indicating otherwise.
A debtor who pays the “BALANCE DUE” stated in the collection letter will be left
unsure as to whether or not the debt has been paid in full, as the Defendant could still
attempt to collect on any interest and fees that accumulated after the letter was sent but
before the balance was paid.

The November 13, 2017 letter would cause the unsophisticated consumer uncertainty and
force him or her to guess how much money he or she allegedly owed to the Defendant,
how much money would accrue daily on the consumer’s alleged debt, how much
additional money he or she would owe if the consumer paid the amount demanded in the
said letter, and if or when the Defendant’s collection efforts would actually discontinue if
the consumer remitted “BALANCE DUE” that the Defendant demanded.

The said letter fails to include any of the safe harbor language set out by the Second

Circuit.
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The Plaintiff was left unsure whether the “BALANCE DUE” would accrue any type of
fees, costs and/or disbursements as there was no disclosure that indicated otherwise.

If the “BALANCE DUE,” will never increase and the debt collector is always willing to
accept this "specified amount™ in "full satisfaction” of the debt, then the debt collector
must clearly state that the holder of the debt will always accept payment of the amount
set forth in “full satisfaction” of the debt.

Defendant was required to include a disclosure that the debt may increase over time, or in
the alternative, the Defendant was required to disclose that the creditor will always accept
this "specified amount™ in "full satisfaction” of the debt nonetheless it did not make any
of those “safe harbor” disclosures in violation of 1692e.

Requiring such disclosure best achieves the Congressional purpose of full and fair
disclosure to consumers that is embodied in Section 1692e. It also protects consumers
such as the Plaintiff, who may hold the reasonable, but mistaken belief that timely
payment will satisfy their debts and it protects them from other debt collectors seeking
undisclosed charges on this debt over time.

Section 1692e of the FDCPA prohibits a debt collector from using any false, or any
deceptive or misleading representation or means in connection with the collection of a
debt, including the false representation of the character, amount or legal status of any
debt, see, 15 U.S.C. § 1692e(2)(A) and 8 1692¢(10).

Upon information and belief, such actions are part of a scheme or business of Defendant
when attempting to collect alleged debts from consumers in the State of New York.

Upon information and belief, the Defendant’s collection letters, such as the said

November 13, 2017 collection letter, number in at least the hundreds.
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The Defendant, by failing to state that it would add other charges to the amount of the
debt, made materially false statements, in violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1692e of the FDCPA.
Defendant's November 13, 2017 letter is in violation of 15 U.S.C. 8§ 1692e, 1692¢e(2)(A)
and 1692e(10) of the FDCPA for the use of any false representation or deceptive means
to collect or attempt to collect any debt and for misrepresenting the amount of the debt
owed by the Plaintiff.

Plaintiff suffered injury in fact by being subjected to unfair and abusive practices of the
Defendant.

Plaintiff suffered actual harm by being the target of the Defendant's misleading debt
collection communications.

Defendant violated the Plaintiff's right not to be the target of misleading debt collection
communications.

Defendant violated the Plaintiff's right to a truthful and fair debt collection process.
Defendant used materially false, deceptive, misleading representations and means in its
attempted collection of Plaintiff's alleged debt.

Defendant's communications were designed to cause the debtor to suffer a harmful
disadvantage in charting a course of action in response to Defendant's collection efforts.
The FDCPA ensures that consumers are fully and truthfully apprised of the facts and of
their rights, the act enables them to understand, make informed decisions about, and
participate fully and meaningfully in the debt collection process. The purpose of the
FDCPA is to provide information that helps consumers to choose intelligently. The
Defendant's false representations misled the Plaintiff in a manner that deprived him of his

right to enjoy these benefits, these materially misleading statements trigger liability under
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section 1692e of the Act.
These deceptive communications additionally violated the FDCPA since they frustrate
the consumer’s ability to intelligently choose his or her response.
Plaintiff seeks to end these violations of the FDCPA. Plaintiff has suffered damages
including but not limited to, fear, stress, mental anguish, emotional stress and acute
embarrassment. Plaintiff and putative class members are entitled to preliminary and
permanent injunctive relief, including, declaratory relief, and damages.

CLASS ALLEGATIONS
This action is brought as a class action. Plaintiff brings this action on behalf of himself
and on behalf of all other persons similarly situated pursuant to Rule 23 of the Federal
Rules of Civil Procedure.
The identities of all class members are readily ascertainable from the records of Forster &
Garbus LLP and those business and governmental entities on whose behalf it attempts to
collect debts.
Excluded from the Plaintiff's Class is the Defendant and all officers, members, partners,
managers, directors, and employees of Forster & Garbus LLP, and all of their respective
immediate families, and legal counsel for all parties to this action and all members of
their immediate families.
There are questions of law and fact common to the Plaintiff's Class, which common
issues predominate over any issues involving only individual class members. The
principal issues are whether the Defendant's communications with the Plaintiff, such as

the above stated claims, violate provisions of the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act.
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The Plaintiff's claims are typical of the class members, as all are based upon the same

facts and legal theories.

The Plaintiff will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the Plaintiff's Class defined

in this complaint. The Plaintiff has retained counsel with experience in handling

consumer lawsuits, complex legal issues, and class actions, and neither the Plaintiff nor

his attorneys have any interests, which might cause them not to vigorously pursue this

action.

This action has been brought, and may properly be maintained, as a class action pursuant

to the provisions of Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure because there is a

well-defined community interest in the litigation:

(a)

(b)

(©)

Numerosity: The Plaintiff is informed and believes, and on that basis alleges,
that the Plaintiff's Class defined above is so numerous that joinder of all
members would be impractical.

Common Questions Predominate: Common questions of law and fact exist

as to all members of the Plaintiff's Class and those questions predominate
over any questions or issues involving only individual class members. The
principal issues are whether the Defendant's communications with the
Plaintiff, such as the above stated claims, violate provisions of the Fair Debt
Collection Practices Act.

Typicality: The Plaintiff's claims are typical of the claims of the class
members. Plaintiff and all members of the Plaintiff's Class defined in this
complaint have claims arising out of the Defendant's common uniform

course of conduct complained of herein.
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(d)

(€)

Adequacy: The Plaintiff will fairly and adequately protect the interests of
the class members insofar as Plaintiff has no interests that are adverse to the
absent class members. The Plaintiff is committed to vigorously litigating
this matter. Plaintiff has also retained counsel experienced in handling
consumer lawsuits, complex legal issues, and class actions. Neither the
Plaintiff nor his counsel have any interests, which might cause them not to
vigorously pursue the instant class action lawsuit.

Superiority: A class action is superior to the other available means for the
fair and efficient adjudication of this controversy because individual
joinder of all members would be impracticable. Class action treatment
will permit a large number of similarly situated persons to prosecute their
common claims in a single forum efficiently and without unnecessary
duplication of effort and expense that individual actions would engender.
Certification of a class under Rule 23(b)()(A) of the Federal Rules of Civil
Procedure is appropriate because adjudications with respect to individual
members create a risk of inconsistent or varying adjudications which could
establish incompatible standards of conduct for Defendant who, on
information and belief, collects debts throughout the United States of

America.

Certification of a class under Rule 23(b)(2) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure is

also appropriate in that a determination that the above stated claims, violate provisions of

the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, and is tantamount to declaratory relief and any

monetary relief under the FDCPA would be merely incidental to that determination.

-10-
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Certification of a class under Rule 23(b)(3) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure is
also appropriate in that the questions of law and fact common to members of the
Plaintiff's Class predominate over any questions affecting an individual member, and a
class action is superior to other available methods for the fair and efficient adjudication of
the controversy.

Further, Defendant has acted, or failed to act, on grounds generally applicable to the Rule
(b)(N(A) and (b)(2) Class, thereby making appropriate final injunctive relief with respect
to the Class as a whole.

Depending on the outcome of further investigation and discovery, Plaintiff may, at the
time of class certification motion, seek to certify one or more classes only as to particular
issues pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(c)(4).

CAUSE OF ACTION

Violations of the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act brought by Plaintiff on behalf of

himself and the members of a class, as against the Defendant.

Plaintiff repeats, reiterates, and incorporates the allegations contained in paragraphs
numbered one (1) through sixty (60) herein with the same force and effect is if the same
were set forth at length herein.

This cause of action is brought on behalf of Plaintiff and the members of a class.

The class involves all individuals whom Defendant's records reflect resided in the State
of New York and who were sent a collection letter in substantially the same form letter as
the letter sent to the Plaintiff on or about November 13, 2017; and (a) the collection letter
was sent to a consumer seeking payment of a personal debt; and (b) the collection letter
was not returned by the postal service as undelivered; and (c) the Plaintiff asserts that the

letter contained violations of 15 U.S.C. 88 1692e, 1692e(2)(A) and 1692e(10) of the

-11-
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FDCPA for the use of any false representation or deceptive means to collect or attempt to
collect any debt and for misrepresenting the amount of the debt owed by the Plaintiff.
Violations of the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act

64.  The Defendant's actions as set forth above in the within complaint violates the Fair Debt
Collection Practices Act.

65. Because the Defendant violated the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, the Plaintiff and
the members of the class are entitled to damages in accordance with the Fair Debt
Collection Practices Act.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, respectfully requests preliminary and permanent injunctive relief, and that this

Court enter judgment in Plaintiff's favor and against the Defendant and award damages as follows:
@ Statutory damages provided under the FDCPA, 15 U.S.C. § 1692(k);

(b) Attorney fees, litigation expenses and costs incurred in bringing this action; and
(© Any other relief that this Court deems appropriate and just under the
circumstances.

Dated: Brooklyn, New York
February 9, 2018

/s Maxim Maximov
Maxim Maximov, Esqg.
Attorneys for the Plaintiff
Maxim Maximov, LLP
1701 Avenue P
Brooklyn, New York 11229
Office: (718) 395-3459

Facsimile: (718) 408-9570
E-mail: m@maximovlaw.com

Plaintiff requests trial by jury on all issues so triable.

/s Maxim Maximov
Maxim Maximov, Esq.

-12-
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CERTIFICATION OF ARBITRATION ELIGIBILITY

Local Arbitration Rule 83.10 provides that with certain exceptions, actions seeking money damages only in an amount not in excess of $150,000,
exclusive of interest and costs, are eligible for compulsory arbitration. The amount of damages is presumed to be below the threshold amount unless a
certification to the contrary is filed.

I, NA , counsel for , do hereby certify that the above captioned civil action
is ineligible for compulsory arbitration for the following reason(s):

D monetary damages sought are in excess of $150,000, exclusive of interest and costs,

E the complaint seeks injunctive relief,

D the matter is otherwise ineligible for the following reason
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N/A
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PERSONAL & CONFIDENTIAL
BALANCE DUE 20 of November 13 2017+ $10 198 98

Reterence Number »

3 » XXX
PR Novermber 13. 2017 . - Account Number XXXXKXXAXX3IS23

1 631 393.9400
1877-709 6989Ext 259

Repessentative Neme: MS ESTRADA
ash:g'e':h;:rﬂt;*'I.ln.'u‘m“ll'bnmll--|||m Monday é%ud"aogg:x‘avososgm 95 319?!4 EST

Control Number: 7019243
1489 CARROLL ST

BROOKLYN NY 11213-4513

Dear Yisroel Setwyn,

Your account has been placed with this office for collection. I this account is not disputed, we shall expect your paymant in tul.
At this time. no determination has been made as to whether a lawsuit will bs commenced.

Uniess you notity dvis otfice within 30 d.rs after receiving this notice that you dlsgute the validity of this debt or any portion thereof,
this office will assume this debt is valid. it you notity this office in writing within 30 days from receiving this notice that you dispute
the validity of this debt or any portion thereof, this office will obtain verification of the debt or obtain a copy of a judgment and mail
vou a copy of such judgment or verification. If mu request this office in wrltin9 within 30 days after receiving this notice, this oftice
will provide you with the name and address of the original creditor, it different from the current creditor.

Please mail all correspondence and payments to the address listed below.

Total Amount of the debt due as of charge-oft. $10,198.96
Total amount of interest accrued since charge-off. $0.00
Total amount of non-interest charges or fees accrued since charge-off. $0.00
Total amount of payments made on the debt since the charge-off. $0.00

Please visit our website, www.forstergarbus.com, if you wish to make a payment on your account using your debit cerd.
Please use the Control Number listed above when making a payment on the website.

SEE IMPORTANT NOTICE ;NCLOSED
Forster & Garbus LLP NYC Dept. of Consumer Affairs # 2045676

Oftfice Location: 80 Motor Parkway ® Commack, NY 11725-5710

& DETACH HERE o
MAKE CHECK PAYABLE TO: FORSTER & GARBUS LLP as sttorneys AND RETURN COUPON WITH PAYMENT TO PO BOX 9030, Commack, NY 11725-2030 W
ENCLOSED ENVELOPE .

RPN

YISROEL SELWYN BALANCE DUE as of November 13, 2017 » $10,198.98
1489 CARROLL ST Reference Number - (IR
BROOKLYN NY 11213-4513 Re » BARCLAYS BANK DELAWARE
Rep. Code -
Date » November 13, 2017
3 Please Note Current BEST TIME TO CALL
e I e ey
Home Fhone # Forster & Garbus LLP
PO Box 9030
Work Phone # Commack, NY 11726-9030
Cell Phone #
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CONSUMER CREDIT TRANSACTION
IMPORTANT! YOU ARE BEING SUED!!
THIS IS A COURT PAPER - A SUMMONS

DON'T THROW IT AWAY!! TALK TO A LAWYER RIGHT AWAY! PART OF YOUR PAY
CAN BE TAKEN FROM YOU [GARNISHEED]. IF YOU DO NOT BRING THIS TO COURT, OR
SEE A LAWYER, YOUR PROPERTY CAN BE TAKEN AND YOUR CREDIT RATING CAN BE
HURT!! YOU MAY HAVE TO PAY OTHER COSTS TOO!! IF YOU CAN'T PAY FOR YOUR
OWN LAWYER, BRING THESE PAPERS TO THIS COURT RIGHT AWAY. THE CLERK
[PERSONAL APPEARANCE] WILL HELP YOU!

002347
@il Qunrt of the Gity OF Nel Yark Summans Avd Bormal Qamplaint
Qonnty of xoves
BARCLAYS BANK DELAWARE Index No.
Plaintiff’s Address: 125 S WEST ST
WILMINGTON, DE 19801
Plaintiff FiLE NO. (D
against The basis of venue designated is:
Defendant resides in ~ KINGS
YISROEL SELWYN Defendant (s)

Transaction took place in KINGS

To the above named Defendant (s)

YOU ARE HEREBY SUMMONED to appear in The Civil Court of the City of New York, County of
KINGS at the office of the Court Clerk at 141 LIVINGSTON ST, BKLY
in the County of KINGS City and State of New York, within the time provided by the law as
noted below and to file your answer to the annexed complaint with the Clerk: upon your faikere o
answer, judgement will be taken against you for the sum of $ 10,198.95 together with the
disbursements of this action.

Date: 12/14/17 FORSTER & GARBUS LLP ATTY FOR
60 Motor Parkway Commack NY 11725
Def.: 1489 CARROLL ST BROOKLYN NY 11213-4513 TEL: (631-393-95400)

Note: The law provides that:(a) if this summons is served by its delivery to you personally
within the City Of New York, you must appear and answer within 20 days after such
service; or (b) If this summons is served by delivery to any person other than you
personally, or is served outside the City of New York, or by publication, or by any mesns
other than personal delivery to you within the City of New York, you are allowed

days after proof of service thereof is filed with the Clerk of this Court which ln
appear and answer. %

Original Account# ending in: 3523 ]
? £1vIL COURT

e Page 1 copy
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TRANSACCION DE CREDITO DEL CONSUMIDOR
'IMPORTANTE! !UD. HA SIDO DEMANDADO!
ESTE ES UN DOCUMENTO LEGAL - UNA CITACION

INO LA BOTE! ICONSULTE CON SU ABOGADO ENSEGUIDA! LE PUEDEN QUITAR PARTE
DE SU SALARIO [EMBARGARLO]. !SI UD. NO SE PRESENTA EN LA CORTE CON ESTA
CITACION LE PUEDEN CONFISCAR SUS BIENES, [PROPIEDAD] Y PERJUDICAR SU
CREDITO! ITAMBIEN ES POSIBLE QUE TENGA QUE PAGAR OTROS GASTOS LEGALES
(COSTAS)! SI UD. NO TIENE DINERO PARA UN ABOGADO TRAIGA ESTOS PAPELES A
LA CORTE INMEDIATAMENTE. VENGA EN PERSONA Y EL SECRETARIO DE LA CORTE LE
AYUDARA.

Gibil Gunrt of the Gty OF Neto York Summans Ay Formal omplaint

Qonnty of  xmves

BARCLAYS BANK DELAWARE No. de epigrafe

El direccion del Demandante:
125 S WEST ST
Demandante WILMINGTCON, DE 19801

Vs. La razon de haber designado esta Corte es:
ElDemandadoviveenel Condadode  KINGS
YISROEL SELWYN Demandado(s)

Latransaccionde creditotuvolugarenel Condadode
KINGS /

Al demandado arriba mencionado:

USTED ESTA CITADO a comparecer en la Corte Civil de la Cuidad de Nueva York, Condado de
KINGS a la oficina del Jefe Principal de dicha Corte en
141 LIVINGSTON ST, BKLY en el Condado de KINGS Ciudad y Estado
de Nueva York, dentro del tiempo provisto por la ley segun abajo indicado y presentar su repuesta a la
demanda adjunta al Jefe de la Corte; si usted no comparece a contestar se rendira sentencia contra

wed a k wr e § 1R,298.98  clyerde &g deserdelaas de este comess.
ausa.

Fechado,12/14/17 FORSTER & GARBUS LLP ATTYS FOR PLTF
60 Motor Parkway Commack NY 11725

Nota: La ley provee que. (a) Si esta citacion es entregada a usted personalmente en la
Ciudad de Nueva York, usted debe comparecer y responderla dentro de 20 dias
despues de la entrega; o (b) Si esta citacion es entregada a otra persona que no fuera
usted personalmente, o si fuera entregada afuera de la Ciudad de Nueva York, o por
medio de publicacion, o por otros medios, que no fueran entrega personal a usted en la
Ciudad de Nueva York, usted tiene 30 dias para comparecer y responder la demanda,
despues de haberse presentado prueba de entrega de la citacion al Jefe de esta Corte.

Original Account# ending in: 3523

—_— Page 2
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FORMAL COMPLAINT
CIVIL COURT OF THE CITY OF NEW YORK

COUNTY OF KINGS

BARCLAYS BANK DELAWARE

against Plaintiff
YISROEL SELWYN Defendant(s)

Plaintiff, by its attorney(s) complaining of the Defendant(s), upon information and belief, alleges:
1. That Defendant(s) resides in the county in which this action is brought; or that Defendant(s) transacted
business within the county in which this action is brought in person or through his agent and that the instant
causeofactionaroseoutofsaidtransaction.
2.0N INFORMATION AND BELIEF DEFENDANT IN PERSON OR BY AGENT MADE CREDIT CARD
PURCHASES AND/OR TOOK MONEY ADVANCES UNDER A CREDIT AGREEMENT -
AT DEFENDANTS REQUEST; A COPY OF WHICH AGREEMENT WAS FURNISHED TO
DEFENDANT AT THE TIME THE ACCOUNT WAS OPENED.
3. THERE REMAINS AN AGREED BALANCE ON SATD ACCOUNT OF $ 10,198.95
4. DEFENDANT(S) IS IN DEFAULT AND DEMAND FOR PAYMENT HAS BEEN MADE.
5. PLAINTIFF STATED AN ACCOUNT TO DEFENDANT WITHOUT OBJECTION
BY DEFENDANT.
6. PLATINTIFF IS A FOREIGN CORPORATION.

PLATNTIFF IS THE ORIGINAL CREDITOR AND IS NOT REQUIRED TO BE LICENSED
BY THE NYC DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS.

2ND CAUSE/ACTION:PLATINTIFF STATED AN ACCOUNT TO DEFENDANT WITHOUT OBJECTION

There is due Plaintiff from Defendant(s) the amount in the complaint, no part of which has been paid,
although duly demanded

WHEREFORE Plaintiff demands judgement against Defendant(s) for the sum of $ 10,198.95
together with the disbursements of this action.

FORSTER & GARBUS LLP

WE ARE DEBT COLLECTORS; ANY INFORMATION OBTAINED WILL TEL # 1-631-393-9400
BE USED IN ATTEMPTING TO COLLECT THIS DEBT. ATTORNEY(S) FOR PLAINTIFF

60 MOTOR PARKWAY
COMMACK, NY 11725

Forster & Garbus LLP NYC Dept. of Consumer Affairs # 2045675

PURSUANT TO PART 130-1.1-a OF THE RULES OF THE
CHIEF ADMINISTRATOR THIS SIGNATURE APPLIES
TO THE ATTACHED SUMMONS AND COMPLAINT

N———"
DATED: ,I,H:E 14 DAY OF DECEIVIBE:R , 2017 VALERIE E. WATTS JOEL D. LEIDERMAN TESS E. GUNTHER
Page 3 COPY
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

YISROEL SELWYN on behalf of himself and
all other similarly situated consumers

Plaintiff,
-against-
FORSTER & GARBUS LLP

Defendant.

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

TO: FORSTER & GARBUS LLP
60 VANDERBILT MOTOR PARKWAY
COMMACK, NEW YORK 11725

YOU ARE HEREBY SUMMONED and required to file with the Clerk of this Court
and serve upon PLAINTIFF’S ATTORNEY:

MAXIM MAXIMOV, ESQ.
MAXIM MAXIMOV, LLP

1701 AVENUE P

BROOKLYN, NEW YORK 11229

an answer to the complaint which is herewith served upon you, with 21 days after service of this
summons upon you, exclusive of the day of service. If you fail to do so, judgment by default will
be taken against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.

CLERK DATE

BY DEPUTY CLERK



ClassAction.org

This complaint is part of ClassAction.org's searchable class action lawsuit database and can be found in this
post: Man Sues Debt Callectors Claiming Court Summons Violated FDCPA



https://www.classaction.org/news/man-sues-debt-collectors-claiming-court-summons-violated-fdcpa



